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Re:  Proposed Historic District Designation — South Second Street
File No. 160539

Dear Commissioners:

We represent Cedarview Management and its Wisconsin-based company Pittsburgh
Avenue LLC (“Pittsburgh Avenue™ or “the Developer™) in connection with the application to
designate or spot zone a portion of South Second Street as a Milwaukee Historic District.

The Developer opposes the designation on both procedural and substantive grounds.
As to procedure, some owners received no notice of the hearing from the City. For those owners
who received a notice, the notice was deficient. Section 6.2.B. of the Historic Preservation
Commission By-Laws and Procedures provides:

If the Commission determines that a nomination satisfies at least one criteria of
significance, a public hearing will be scheduled in compliance with the provisions of the ordinance.
Notification shall include a copy of the Historic Designation Study Report. The Historic
Designation Study Report shall be available for public scrutiny at the Office of the Staff of the
Historic Preservation Commission or by mail upon individual request.

We understand that the staff of the Historic Preservation Commission is overloaded
right now due to a medical leave. We are not being critical of that office in any way. However, the
ordinance requires that the report be provided in the notice and it was not. In fact, we do not believe:
the report was published until this morning. We have not had the opportunity to review it carefully.
Therefore, the Committee should not act until notification is provided, which includes the proper
Historic Designation Study Report.

Before turning to the substance of the ordinance, we provide a bit of background.
The Developer purchased the property known as 133 W. Pittsburgh Avenue (Tax Key # 428-0269-
110) on October 20, 2015. Not long atter the purchase, the Developer attended a Walker’s Point
Association meeting where it shared its plans for the property, took comments and answered
questions from attendees. The Developer also had several meetings with Alderman Jose Perez and
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other members of the community about the project. It has taken into consideration the concerns of
all involved.

As all interested, objective parties know, the 133 W. Pittsburgh Avenue buildings are
being resurrected from their dilapidated state and renovated. The property will be called the Artistry
when finished and will provide a place for over 100 people to live. Dozens more will find work in
one of the first or second floor office and retail spaces that will be created. The Artistry will
contribute to existing efforts to make this this section of Second Street the vibrant area it once was.

Not all of the Pittsburgh Avenue buildings included in the proposed district contribute
to its historical significance. The original architectural cladding of the Sperry Candy Building was
completely removed in the early 1960s. Also, there was a 20 foot wide full length addition placed
on that building on the east fagade facing the railroad tracks. Any historical significance to the
Sperry Candy Building may have once had has been eliminated. The Milwaukee Department of City
Development recognized this fact when it listed the Sperry Candy Building as “non-contributing” to
the South First and Second Street Historic District. (Attached to this letter as Exhibit A is a true
copy of the City’s Nomination Form.) For these reasons, the Sperry Candy Building should not be
included in Milwaukee designation.

The Department of City Development’s 1987 Application and the National Park
Service’s designation excluded from the District the surface parking lot on Oregon Street. This
surface lot meets none of the factors listed for your consideration under the Milwaukee City
Ordinance. When the National Parks Service created the South First and Second Historic District,
the parking lot was part of the 133 W. Pittsburgh parcel. Exhibit B is a print out from the Assessor’s
office showing the separate parcels being combined in 1985. Nonetheless, the Park Service split the
parcel and excluded the surface parking lot from the District.

Exhibit C shows the South First and Second Street Historic District as designated by
the Park Service outlined in red. The proposed district is in black, and the Developer’s property is
highlighted in yellow. The Park Service’s decision to exclude the surface lot no doubt was
supported by the fact that the buildings and the parking lot are separated by a public alley.

There is additional precedent for only designating portions of a parcel as included
within the boundaries of a historic district. Split designation occurred at St. Mary’s Hospital, the
University Club and the Pettibone Mansion. If the federal government’s work is to be given due
weight, both the parking lot and the Sperry Candy Building should be excluded from any historic
designation you make.

Because permits have already been issued for the renovation of the physical structures
on this property, the Commission’s historic designation will not have an immediate impact on the
Artistry. However, the designation could deter future improvements on the buildings. More
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significantly, it could impact any development of the non-adjoining surface parking lot which faces
Oregon Street.

The costs associated with a historic designation were not factored into the
Developer’s analysis when it purchased this property less than one year ago. To make the Developer
bear this cost now is unfair to it, just as it is unfair to the other owners on this little patch of street
who have not yet renovated their property. We have estimated that the cost of the garage will
increase by 20% or as much as $600,000 in material upgrades.

For the foregoing reasons, we respectfully request that the application be denied.

Yours truly,

vl

/' Michael C. Lueder

Attachments

4822-9637-5864.1
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1. Name

historic N/A

andor common SOUTH FIRST AND SECOND STREET HISTORIC DISTRICT
2. Location

street & number See Inventory N/A_ not for publication

city, town  Milwaukee N/Avicinity of

state Milwatkee (WIS  code 55 county Milwaukee code 079

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

_X_ district — public _X occupied — agriculture —— museum

___ building(s) _X_ private —___unoccupied _X  commercial — park

— structure — both — work in progress —— educational — private residence

— Site Public Acquisition Accessible —__ entertainment __religious

— object — in process _ X yes: restricted — government ____ sclentific
N/Apeing considered —Xyes: unrestricted _X_ industrial _— transportation

—no — military — other:

4. Owner of Property

name N/A

street & number N/A

city, town N/A — vicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Milwaukee County Courthouse

street & number 901 North 9th Street

city, town Milwaukee state W[ 53233
6. Representation in Existing Surveys

tive Comprehensive Milwaukee Survey has this property been determined eligible? ___ yes X o

date 1979/1985 __ federal __state ___ county _X_ local

depository for survey records Department of City Development, 809 North Broadway

city, town  Milwaukee state WI 53202
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REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

Wisconsin Inventory of Historic Places Not determined eligible
1985 State

State Historical Society of Wisconsin

Madison, WI

H.A.E.R 7 Wisconsin Inventéry of Historic Places Not Determined eligible
- Menomonee Valley Industrial Survey - State
1979 State

State Historical Society of Wisconsin
Madison Wisconsin



7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

— excellent — . deteriorated ____ unaltered _X original site

X good —ruins _X altered — moved date
fair — unexposed :

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The South First and Second Street Histortc District s a group of
commerctal and #ndustrtal buildings located south of Milwaukee's central
business district at the confluence of the Milwaukee and Menomonee Rivers.
The district houses various reiated mixed bustness uses inciuding retailing,
wholesaling, ltght manufacturing and warehousing as well as a large number of
taverns. These businesses I|ine South First and Second Streets from the
riverfront to Oregon Street. The district is compactly bulilt with many
buildings of party wall constructfon. Sticing through the eastern part of the
district are the elevated tracks of the Chicago & Northwestern Rallway. There
are 34 commerctal butldings 'n the district of which stx are non-contributing
butidings. These latter butidings have been so sligntficantly altered that
they do not contribute to the dtstrict's historical signlficance. The 28
archttecturally and historically signtficant butldings In the district
represent the period of commerctal development from about 1855 to 19 25

The district is distinguished from tts environs by the change tn land use
and the difference in scale, destgn and building type of the surrounding
structures. To the east, west and south the district is bordered by large,
mostly modern, light manufacturing plants tnterspersed with surface parking
lots and storage yards. To the north the district s physically separated
from the downtown by the Milwaukee and Menomonee Rivers.

The district expertenced continuous commerctal development from the 1840s
into the 1920s. The bulk of the buildings, however, were built etther between
1858 and 1885, or between 1892 and 1900. This resulted ¥n a vartety of
bullding types that differ in hetght, mass, scaie and architectural freatment.
The largest buildings are the warehouses and manufacturing plants butlt &n the
1880s and 1890s. These are the four- and five-story blocks along South Second
Street between Pittsburgh Avenue and the Milwaukee River, and on Seeboth
Street and Pittsburgh Avenue east of Second Street that back up to the
railroad tracks. Their rectilinear forms are architecturally treated with
Romanesque, Gothic, ltalianate and Commerciat Style mottfs. South of Seeboth
Street along South First and Second Streets are the ditstrict's oldest
buildings. Constructed from about 1858 to 1885, these former store buiidings
are two- to four-stories in hetght and display Greek Revival, [talianate,
Victortan Gothic and Queen Anne archltectural features.

The butidings were constructed of etther ordinary frame constructton (not
ftre-proof), or with load bearing walls, or metal frames. The earliest
buildings were all of ordinary construction, which Itmtted thelr height and
overall slize. Beginning In the 1890s, all of the butldings in the district
were bullt with steel or cast iron structural members. The exterlors were
clad with materials that were considered to be fireproof. Brick, stone and
terra cotta were used to face the exteriors and for trim elements. Metal,
which was less fireproof, was used in the cast tron and stamped metal store

Nomination includes: 28 Contributing Buildings ; 6 Non-contributing Buildings.
Total 34 Properties
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fronts and to sheath cornices and window hoods. The brick was etther locally
produced cream brick or Imported pressed brick. The following inventory
indicates the map no., street address, historic name (i1f known), construction
date (if known), and classification code of each bullding in the district (C-
contributing; NC-non-contributing). Dates of construction were determined from
building permits, newspaper articles, date stones, fire insurance records and
tax records. Historic names and uses were determined from newspaper articles,
soctal, business and commercial histortes, city directortes, flre insurance
records and fire tnsurance maps.

Map No. Address Historic Name/Use Date Class
1 100 S. 2nd S+. Mt lwaukee Cold Storage 18921 C
2 126 S. 2nd St. Lindsay Bros. Agricultural 18922 C

fmplements
3 160 S. 2nd St. F.A. Walsh Co. 18993 c
4 169-71 S. 2nd St.  Seeboth Bros. Warehouse 1899/19254 ¢
5 173 S 2nd St. Tavern 1904/1972% NC
6 181 S. 2nd St. Tavern 1925/1980%  NC
7 191-93 S. 2nd St.  Commerctal Building 19037 Cc
8 205 S. 2nd St. Jordan Tool & Machine Co. 1946/1951/1956°NC
9 207 S. 2nd St. L.M. Kahn Clothing c1865° {
10 209-11 S 2nd S. John Black Butiding c1865/18681°0 ¢
1 213-19 S. 2nd St.  Maschauer & Frankfurth c1866Lt g

Har dware
12 221-25 S. 2nd St.  C.F. Stamm Building 18652 &
3 231-33 S. 2n St. Richard Seidel Building 188713 c
14 235 5. 2nd St. John Borger Building c185814 C
15 216 S. 2Znd St. Schueppert-Zoeller Print Co. 191115 c

16 212 S. 2nd St. Commercial Building cigs7® ¢
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17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
25
26
27
28

29

30

31

32

33

34

200 S.

127-33
Avenue

123 W.
Avenue

119 W.
Avenue

117 W.
Avenue

130 W.
Avenue

132 W.
Avenue

190-96
170 S.
131 W.
115 W.
131 S.

145 S.

149-53
157-59

161-63

165-69

100 E.

2nd St.

W. Pittsburgh

Pittsburgh

Pi+tsburgh

Pl+tsburgh

Pt+tsburgh

Pi++sburgh

S 2n St.
2nd St+.
Seeboth St.
Seeboth St.
1st St.

ist St.

S. 1st S+.
S. 1st St.
. 1st St.
S. 1st St.

Seeboth St+.

Larkin Building

Sperry Candy Co.

Hof fmann & Bauer Co.
A.P. Prasser Co.
Hoffmann & Bauer Co.
Manufacturing
Commercial Butlding

Mabbett & Breed's Block

Nazro Hérdware Butlding

Mi {waukee Lace Paper Co.

Michel Building

Schneider Building

Mi Iwaukee Bronze Casting

Company

Francts Holzinger Building

Robt. Kretschmar Building

Commercial Building
Commercial Buiiding

Burnham's Bullding

c189017 ¢
1929/19508 nC
194519 nC
1881 20 c
189521 c

22

1919/1925/1926"" C

186523 c

185824 ¢
187323 c
189420 C

c1872%7 c

8

18662 C

1908/196329 NC

1865°° c
c1860°! c
186732 ¢
186733 c
186434 c
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DESCRIPTION OF SELECTED BUILDINGS N CHRONOLOGICAL ORDER

Date of
Map No. Address Histor tc Name . Construction
14 235 S. 2nd St. Borger Buildin 33 c1858
g

The Borger Building ts one of Milwaukee's oldest commercial butidings.
As an important example of pre-Civil War architecture, it evokes the post and
ltntel construction of the Greek Revival with i+s rectilinear form, restratned
facades and stone Iintels tincised with compressed ogee arches. i+ is a
substantial block that ts sited at the northwest corners of South Second and
West Oregon Streets. It is four stories high, seven bays wide, nine bays long
and clad with cream brick. Across the top is simple saw tooth corbeliling.
With the exception of modifications to the ground floor on the Second Street
facade, the exterior has remained largely unaltered.

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
24 190-96 S. 2nd St. Mabbett & Breed's Block36 1858

Mabbett and Breed's Block is a two-story commercial building clad with
cream brick that originally contained seven storefronts, each three bays wide.
The building has been reduced by the removal of the north six bays. The
facade is articulated in the same manner as Burnham's Bulliding with an arcaded
ground floor and round-arched fenestration on the second floor. The brick
work along the top has been modified intfo a flat cornice except for the south
three bays which retain a portton of the original cornice above the middie
window. In this same bay, *he ground floor arcade has been replaced with a
modern storefront.

. Date of
Map No. Address Histor ic Name Construction
31 157-59 S. 1st St. Kretschmar Butlding 37 c1860

Simitar in design to the Borger Building, the Kretschmar Building has the
same rectilinear form, and incised lintels reminiscent of the Greek Revival
style. I+ ts three stores high, four bays wide and clad with cream brick.
Across the top, the parapet appears to have been rebutit with blind arcading
and denticulated brick work. The ground floor appears to have been only
slightly altered, and retains the basic form of the original storefront.
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- Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Constrruction
34 100 E. Seeboth St. Burnham's Building38. 1864

Burnham's Building was originally buiit as a commercial block with three
storefronts. Standing two stortes, it is clad with cream brick that is
painted. The facade is nine bays wide, divided into thirds by a cenfer
pavilton that is articulated with pilasters on the second floor and a pediment
at the roofline. Designed tn a version of the Italtanate style, the ground
floor's arcaded openings are intact, but have been infilled with brick.
Separating the first and second floors is a beltcourse of denticulated bricks.
On the second floor, the round-arched window openings are framed by brick
pilasters. Across the top is a brickwork cornice that is decorated with
dentils, circular panels and blind arcading. Other changes to the extertor
have included the closing of the second floor windows with glass block and the
addition of a {oading bay cut into the wall of the west facade.

Date of
Map No. Address Historlc Name Construction
30 149-53 S. 1st St.  Francls Holzinger Bullding3? 1865

The Holzinger Building ts a Civil War era (talianate commercial block.
I+ ts three stories high, seven bays wide and clad with cream brick. The
windows are arched with brick surrounds and incised |imestone keystones.
Across the top ts brick corbelling and a plaque at the center emblazoned with
the name "F. HOLZINGER". |t appears that in the late 1870s or early 1880s the
ground floor was altered with the addition of the present Victorian storefront
and the parapet wall across fthe top.

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
10 209-11 S. znd St.  John Black Building?® c 1865/1868

The John Black Building is another exampte of a Civil War era Ifalianate
commercial block. From newspaper accounts, it is likely the building was
erected in two phases. The first two floors were bullt sometime around 1865
and the third floor apparently was added by Black in 1868. The exterior Is
clad with cream brick. At the center of the second and third floors are
patred round-arched windows with brick hoodmolds and incised I tmestone
keystones. These are flanked by single windows framed by brick pilasters and
+rimmed with stone. The brick cornice ts missing and the original storefront
has been replaced with brick infiil.
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‘ Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
12 221-25 S. 2nd St.  C.F. Stamm Building 4! 1865

The C.F. Stamm Building ts an Italianate style commercial block. One of
the largest Civil War era buildings in the district, it is four stores high
and seven bays wide. The exterfor is clad wlith cream brick that has been
patnted. The ground floor has retained its original storefronts. The second
and third floor windows have triplte sash. The ortginal stone lintels have
been removed. The fourth floor has round arched openings wlth brick hood
molds. Across the top ts the same type of brick corbelling and brickwork
decoration found on many of the other butldings in the district.

Date of

Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
11 213-19 S. 2nd St. Maschauer & Frankfurth Hardware Co.4'2 cl1866

This buflding ts another fine example of Civil War era ltalianate style
commercial architecture. [+ ts three stories high, six bays wide and clad
with cream brick. The facade is articulated by ornamental brickwork framing a
series of arched windows on the second and third floors with compound arches
and pllasters. Across the top Is brick corbelling. The ground fioor has been
altered by the addition of modern storefronts.

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
32 161-63 S. 1st St. Commercial Building c1867

This building ts similar to the other Italianate style commercial blocks
in the district. |+ ts three stories high, three bays wide and clad with
cream brick. The windows are round arched openings with brick surrounds and
| imestone keystones. Across the top ts brick corbetling. Changes to the
exterlor have included the removal of the original window sash and alterations
to the ground floor storefronts.

Date of
Map No. Address Histor ic Name Construction
28 131 S. 1st Street Emi i Schneider Bu?lding43 1866

This bullding was erected in 1866 for Emil Schneider's Ilquor rectifying
business at the southwest corner of South 1st Street and West Seeboth: Street.
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I+ is two stories high, six bays wide, eleven bays long and clad with cream
brick that is now painted. Both the South 1st Street and Seeboth Street
facades are fully articulated in the |talianate manner simitar to Burnham's
Building (No. 34) and Mabbett and Breed's Block (No..24). The ground floor fis
articulated with an arcaded motif that has been altered on the South 1st
Street facade by the partial removal of the brick plers and the enclosure of
the arcading with brick. The second floor windows are round arched openings
with brick surrounds, |imestone sills and keystones. Brick corbelling forms
the cornice at the top of the building. The windows on both floors have been
filled with glass block.

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
33 165-69 S. 1st St. Commerctal Building c1868

Thits commerctal block ts also an 1860s Itallanate style butiding. Two
stories high and seven bays wide, it was built to house three storefronts.
The cream brick, once painted, has recently been cleaned. The ground floor
has retained the original storefront configuration, although the storefronts
themselves have been altered. Separating the first and second floors Is a
projecting wood cornice. The windows on the second floor are round arched
openings with siightly projecting brick hood molds and |imestone keystones.
Many of the windows have retained thetr original wooden sash. At the top of
the building ts a simple projecting wood cornice. )

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
27 115 W. Seeboth St. Michel Building** c1872

This structure is an example of a Victortan Gothic-influenced commercial
building. |+ is two stories high and clad with cream brick that has been
palnted. The ground floor ts in virtually origitnal condition. The matln
entrance ts recessed and is flanked by showcase windows framed by cast iron
pters. The second floor is articulated by a center gabled pavilton. The
windows on the second floor have segmental openings with the center windows
trimmed with an arched stone lintel. The flanking windows have lintels of

‘brick laid tn a saw tooth pattern. Across the top ts a bracketed cornice and
a coping of pressed metal.

_ Date of
Map No. Address - Histortc Name Construction

25 170 S. 2nd St. John Nazro Hardware 47 1873
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The Nazro Hardware Building was erected in 1873 by George Burpnham. Sited
at the southeast corner of South Second and West Seeboth streets, it 1s a
substanttal, four story, cream brick, commercital block that s eleven bays
wide on Seeboth Street and twelve bays wide on Second Street. Both facades
are fully articulated in the Italtanate style. On the ground floor fthe
ortginal cast lron Corinthtan order pilasters on Second Street and the engaged
columns on Seeboth Street remain. The storefonts have been altered except for
the eight eastern bays on Seeboth Street. Above the first floor, each floor
ts articulated with round arched windows set between brick pilasters. At the
corners of the buitding are brick piers with incised |imestone capstones at
each floor level. Across the top of the butliding is a simple brick parapet.

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Constructton
20 119 W. Pit+tsburgh  A.P. Prasser Building 4° 1881
This small scale I[taltanate commercial building was built for A.P.

Prasser tn 1881 to house his upholstery business. |t is two stories hitgh, two
bays wide and clad with cream brick that is now palnted. |In 1929 the buliding
was incorporated Into the adjacent Hoffman and Bauer Building (No. 21) and the
ground floor fenestration was modified to blend with the adjacent storefront.
The upper floor has retained i+s original fenestration of three round arched
opentngs fintshed with brick surrounds and incised |imestone keystones.

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
Map NO. hddress
13 231 S. 2nd St. Richard Seidel Bullding4’ 1887

The Setde! Butlding, an example of the Queen Anne style, represented a
departure from the tradittonal I|taltanate designs that had dominated the
district's architecture. It ts three stories high, clad with cream brick and
t+rimmed with stone. The facade is divided into three bays by brick pters.
The ortginal storefront has been compietely oblliterated by brick infttl, but
+he Integrity of the upper facade with i+s patterned brick work, terra cotta
tties and carved stone work has been retained. The facade is horizontally
articulated with a succession of stone bands across the front of the building.
At the top of the bullding each of the piers ferminates tn clustered
colonettes with oversized foliated carved stone caps. Foliated stone panels
ornament the parapet over the central bay.
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Date of
Map No. Address Histortc Name Construction
i 100 S. 2nd St. HF Iadkes Colld Bforage Gt 1892

The Milwaukee Cold Storage Company ts a large warehouse butlding that ts
located on the banks of the Menomonee River on the east side of South Second
Street. Sited for easy water access to shippers and wholesalers, the butlding
also abuts the tracks of the former Chicago, Mllwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific
Ratlroad. Standing five stories high, the cream brick structure has walls 2
feet thick enclosing 28,000 square feet of refrigerated storage space. [T was
the largest commercial warehouse of its kind tn Milwaukee when it was erected
tn 1892. The architects of the building were Crane and Barkhausen who fully
articutated both the river and the south Second Street facades with elongated
bltnd arcading.49 Across the top ts a high parapet wall with pediments at the
center of both facades emblazoned with the words "Mtlwaukee Cold Storage Co."
tn ratsed lettering.

: Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
2 126 S. 2nd St. Lindsay Brothers Warehouse °° 1892

The Lindsay Brothers Butlding is a four story wearehouse with a facade
that extends for 325 feet along South Second Street. Twenty bays long, its
uniform facade is clad with cream brick and is fenestrated with double-hung
wooden sash grouped in threes and divided into bays by brick piers. The
windows on the fourth floor are segmentally arched, above which is a corbelled
cornice. Over the four central bays is a tall corbelled parapet with a plaque
emblazoned with "Lindsay Bros." and a date stone with "1892". The architect
of the building was R.W. Williams.5l

Date of
Map No. Address Histor tc Name Construction
17 200 S. 2nd St. Larkin Building 52 c1894

The Larkin Buif{ding ts a former factory that was occupied by a succession
of companies that manufactured bicycles, wool goods and candy. Located at the
southeast corner of South Second Street and West Pittsburgh Avenue, it ts four
stories high and constructed of cream brick that fs now painted. Between the
third and fourth floors on the angied corner bay, is a plaque with the name
"Larkin". Both facades are similarly treated with segmental openings on the
second and third floors and round arched openings on the fourth floor. Across
the top is brick corbelling and merlins. The ground floor has been altered
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with brick infill and glass block, but the rusticated stone entrance arches at
the corner and on South Second Street remain.

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
21 . 117 W. Pittsburgh Hoffman & Bauer Co.53 1895

This small scale commercial building was erected In 1895 for sheet metal
~contractors, Hoffman and Bauer. Sited on a very narrow lot, it is three
stories high, two bays wide and constructed of cream brick that is now
palnted. The facade |s assymetrically divided into two bays with brick piers
that rise from the base to the cornice. The off center main entrance is
recessed within a round-arched portal. Across the front of the bullding, a
series of patterned brtckwork bands, beltcourses and corbelling define the
floor levels. Originally there was an elaborate sheet metal cornice, that
served was an advertisement of the firm's work, but it has been removed. In
1929, the business expanded westward into the Prasser Building (No. 20) and In
1945, built a further one-story addition (No. 19). Today all three bulldings
are occupled by Hess, Sweitzer Painting Contractors.

Date of
Map No. Address Historic Name Construction
3 160 S. 2nd St. Walsh Butlding™* 1899

The Walsh Bullding is a flve-story, Romanesque Revlival influenced, 1ight
manufacturing plant and warehouse originally buitt for the manufacture of
+inware and tinner's machinery. |t later became a warehouse for tin cans and
agricultural Implements, then an auto tire store, and Is now used for the
production and storage of luggage. Sited at the southeast corner of South
Second Street and West Seeboth Street, the austere brick curtain walls are
articulated on both facades with elongated arches that rise from the first
floor belt course through the fifth floor. The walls terminate in a flaring,
corbelled parapet. The ground floor was converted to storefronts in 1928 that
are now filled with vertical flush boarding on the South Second_Street facade.
The archlitects were the Milwaukee firm of Crane and Barkhausen.
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Footnotes #7

IMitwaukee City Building Permi+

9The first known occupant of this building, Lippman M. Kohn, was listed as
early as the 1865 Milwaukee City Directory.

10Milwaukee Sentine!l, 14 November 1865, p. 1, col. 7; 29 September 1868, p.
1, col. 4.

11The first known occupants of this building, Joseph Maschauer and Wiiliam
Frankfurth, were listed as early as the 1866 Milwaukee City Directory.

Y25entinel, 29 July 1865, p. 1 col. 5.
1BSen+inel, 19 August 1887, p. 3, col. 4.

14The first known occupant of this bullding, John Borger, was listed as early
as the 1858-59 Mt lwaukee City Directory.

1584t 1ding Permit

16The first known occupants of this building, F.A. Becker and A.J. Gallagher,

were listed as early as the 1867 Milwaukee Board of Fire Underwriters
Directory.

17This butiding was first occupied by the Larkin-Kalt-Zimmers children's shoe
manufacturing company about 1890 according to Miiwaukee City Directortes.

lgBuilding Permi+
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19 114,

20 Plague on Building

2L Building Permit

Ibid.

2
3James Buck, Ptoneer History of Milwaukee, 4 vols. (Milwaukee: Mtliwaukee

News Co., 1876-1886), 4:295.

2
4The first known occupant of thts butliding was druggist Peter L. Dohmen, who

was listed as early as the 1865 Milwaukee City Directory.

SSenTineI, 20 December 1873, p. 8, col. 2; 22 December 1873, p. 8, col. 3.

26
This butiding was first occupted by the Milwaukee Lace Paper Company about

1894 according to Milwaukee City Directorles.
2
] The first known occupant of +this butlding was produce and commission
merchant George Michel listed as early as the 1872-73 Milwaukee City
Directory.

28
Sentinel, 3 May 1866, p. 1, col. 6.

9Bui[ding Permt t
3

0The first known occupant of this building was saloon keeper Francts
Holzinger, listed as early as the 1860 Miliwaukee City Directory.

1
® The first known occupant of this bullding was butcher, Robert Kretschmar,

listed as early as the 1860 Miiwaukee City Directory.
32The first known occupant of this buliding was listed as early as the 1867
Mt lwaukee Board of Fire Underwriters Directory.

Ibid.

34
35

6
: Buck, Pioneer Hlstory, 4:295.

Sentinel, 6 December 1864, p. 1, col. 5.

1858-59 Mt waukee City Directory
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371860 Mt lwaukee Ctty Directory
3SSenﬂnel, 6 December 1864, p. 1 col. 5.
39Fbid.

4

0Senﬂnel, 14 November 1865, p. 1 col. 7.

1
4 Sentinel, 29 July 1865, p. 1 col. 5.

421866 Miiwaukee City Directory

43Senﬂnel, 3 May 1866, p. 1, col. 6.

441872-73 Mi Iwaukee Ctty Directory
45

Senttnel, 20 December 1873, p. 8, col. 2.
6

4 Plaque on Building

47Sen1"rne|, 19 August 1887, p. 3 col. 4.

8
c Butiding Permit

2
3 1894 Miiwaukee City Directory

53Building Permtt

54Ibid.
5Slbid.
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Signiflcance

The South First and Second Street Historic District ts both archltec-
turally and historically significant. The district is of local architectural
significance for its fine examp les of Greek Revival, |taltanate, Queen Anne,
Romanesque Revival and Commerctal Style architecture. An exceptional aspect of
the district's architecture i{s the large number of Civil War era (c1858-1868)
commercial buildings, which constitute Mt lwaukee's stngle highest concentration
of these types of structures. The district is of local histortcal
signtficance as one of Mi Iwaukee's oldest commercial districts, stnce 1+t
comprised the original business district of the Walker's Polnt plat. Many of
the buildings date from the city's first important era of commerctal expanston
in the late 1850s and 1860s as Mtlwaukee emerged from a loose confederation of
three villages tnto a unified city.

Architecture

The bulldings of the South Flrst and Second Street Historic District
represent about 60 years of commercial architectural styles. These two streets
comprised the first business district in the ortginal Walker's Point plat.
Some commerctal development began with the intttal settiement of Walker's Point
in +he 1840s, but the sub ject district was not developed in earnest unttl about
a decade later. Many of these first bulldings were small, frame structures
t+hat were replaced with larger, more substantial brick buildings as the
expansion of existing businesses and +the tntroduction of new commercial
enterprises mandated better facilities. This trend of successive rebutlding
within +he district lasted well Into the twentteth century.

In spite of this, trend, a significant number of Civil War era (c1858-
1868) bulldings representing variattons of the Greek Revival and |taltanate
styles have survived. AT the close of Milwaukee's pioneer period in the late
1840s, the city expertenced tremendous population growth that prompted
tncreased commercial activity. Beginning in the late 1850s, the first simple
frame buildings that were constructed durtng *hts first boom perfod were
replaced with masonry commerclal blocks with facades that were architecturally
treated. The two oldest extant butldings in the district are the Borger
Building (No. 14) (c1858) at 235 South Second Street and Mabbett and Breed's
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Block (No. 24) (1858) at 190-96 South Second Street. The Borger Building Is a
simplified example of late Greek Revival influenced design characterized by a
severe rectilinear form, stark facades and heavy lintels Incised with an ogee
curve. This same tncised lintel detall also appears on the Kretschmar Bullding
(No. 31), (c1860) at 157-59 South 1st Street. Mabbett and Breed's Block 1s a
simplified example of the [talianate style. All of these buiidings 1llustrate
the type of functional commercial architecture present in the clty just prilor
to the Civil War.

During the Civil War years, Milwaukee experlenced tremendous commerclal
growth. More commercial space was needed and Milwaukee's ploneer business
districts of jumbled frame butldings were substantlialiy rebuilt in brick. Over
one~third of the historlc district's extant buildings were erected In the
1860s. The architectural style most widely used was the |talfanate style.
Burnham's Building (No. 34) (1864) at 100 East Seeboth Street and Schnelder's
Building (No. 28) (1866) at 131 South 1st Street both exempl!ify the early
Lombard [talfanate style popular in the 1850s and 1860s. These examples are
modest interpretations of the Early Renalssance brick architecture
characteristic of Northern |+aly and are executed in cream brick with arcaded
ground floors and heavily corbelled, paneled and arcaded cornice detalls.
Examples of the more typical |talianate commercial architecture of the period
are numerous, and are characterized by restrained masonry facades punctuated by
round arched windows articulated with cream brick surrounds with keystones of
elther cream brick or incised stone. Cornlce lines are treated with simple
wood cornlces or brick corbelling. These bulldings are exemplified by the
commercial block (33) (c1867) at 165-169 South First Street, the Holzlinger
Bullding (30) (1865) at 149-53 South 1st Street and the Maschauer & Frankfurth
Hardware Co. (11) (c1866) at 213-19 South Second Street. Their scale and
architectural deslgn signaled the rise of South First and Second Streets as a
major business district.

The post-Civil War period of commercial design was dominated by the more
picturesque Victorian styles including the Victorian Gothic, Victorlan
ftaltanate and Queen Anne. The Michel Bullding (No. 27) (1872) at 115 West
Seeboth Street is a well preserved, modest example of a Victortan Gothic-
Influenced building. The ground floor is intact and enframed with cast Iron
members while the second floor is enlivened with patterned brickwork and a
polnted arched hood moid over the center window. Across the top Is a bracketed
cornice with a center gable finished with a broad metal coping.

The Itallanate architecture of this pertod differs somewhat in its degree
of elaboration from the ear!ler examples. The Nazro Hardware Butlding (No. 25)
(1873) at 170 South Second Street is a good example of the post-Civil War
Itallanate architecture found in the district. This building exempliftes the
demand for large, functional, structures to house the city's expanding
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wholesale Industry. The massive brick block is articulated with repetitive
bays of cast Iron storefronts and upper floors wlith arched windows and
pliasters In the manner of the Venetlan Renalssance style.

The Seidel Building (No. 13) (1887) at 231 South Second Street represents
a departure from the Ifalianate designs that had previousty dominated the
district's architecture. It Is an example of eclectic Queen Anne archltecture.
The upper floors are enlivened with patterned brickwork and terra cotta tiles
In the Queen Anne Style.

At the close of the nineteenth century, the scale of [ight manufacturing
and warehousing greatly Increased in the historic district creating a demand
for much larger buildings than those that had been bullt up to that time. The
buiidings erected for these uses were massive, rectilinear blocks with facades
that were boldly articulated with Romanesque and paneled brick detallling.
Three significant examples from this perlod are the Milwaukee Cold Storage Co.
(No. 1) (1892) at 100 South Second Street; Lindsay Brothers Warehouse (No. 2)
(1892) at 126 South Second Street; and the Walsh Bullding (No. 3} (1899) at 160
South Second Street. These bulldings form a continuous facade along South
Second Street from the river to West Seeboth Street. All of these bulldings
were designed by the Milwaukee firm of Crane and Barkhausen. The first two
contrast with the Walsh Bullding, reflecting the evolution of commercial design
In the 1890s. The somewhat fussy brick detalling of the MIlwaukee Cold

' Storage, Co. and the paneled piers, spandrels and corbelling of Lindsay
Brothers contrast wlth the taut severity of the Walsh Bullding, whose deslgn
impact is derlved almost entirely from the fenestration pattern plercing the
smooth wall planes.

Few major bulldings were erected in the district after 1900. The simple
Commercial Style Schueppert-Zoeller Bullding (No. 15) (1911) at 216 South 2nd
Street 1s typlcal of the functional brick commercial bufldings of the early
1900s. By far the largest twentleth century building In the district Is the
tive-story, International Style structure the Sperry Candy Company (No. 18)
(1929/1950) bullt as an office and productlion facllity at 127 West Pittsburgh
Street. Since the present architectural character of this bullding Is entirely
the result of the 1950 re-building, 1t Is classifled as a non-contributing
structure.

Historical Background/Commercial Significance

South First and Second Streets were origlnally the primary business
thoroughfares of Milwaukee's south side. They were part of the original
Walker's Point plat that was bordered by the Menomonee River on the north, the
Ml lwaukee Rlver on the east, South 13th Street on the west and Greenfteld
Avenue on the south. Thls land was platted Into lots by George Walker in 1836,
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but, because of technicalities in clearing +he title, the plat was not
officially recorded until 1854. George Walker was one of Milwaukee's three
original town developers +together with Solomon Juneau and Byron Kilbourn.
Juneau's and Ktibourn's two plats were located north of the Menomonee Valley at
what Is today Mllwaukee's central business district. With the difficulty In
clearing the title and because most of Walker's Point was swampiand, settiement
in Walker's Point langulshed far behind Juneautown and Kilbourntown until the
early 1850s. In the 1846 census, Juneau's and Kilbourn's settlements accounted
for 90% of Milwaukee's population and all but 2% of the businesses and
industries In Milwaukee, tmplying that Walker's Polnt was almost untnhabited 2
The only signlficant high ground on Walker's Point was a rldge of land that
terminated at the Intersection of today's Barclay and Water Streets. At this
location, George Walker bullt his cabin and warehouse, thus giving Walker's
Point its name.

The south slde was not without its promoters, however, and other than
Walker, various men fincluding Horace Chase, John Ogden and Henry Comstock
leveled bluffs, filled swamps and constructed streets to encourage settiement.
Probabiy the first major public Improvement was the erection of the Menomonee
Bridge at the confliuence of the Miiwaukee and Menomonee Rivers tn 1838 by Byron
Kilbourn. Thts was the first bridge built in Milwaukee and It connected
today's North Plankinton Avenue with South Second Street. The bridge was
intended by Kilbourn to provide a direct route to his plat for new arrivals
coming from the south on the Chicago Trail, thus dlverting potential settlers
away from Juneau's competitive east side plat. The ploy was successful in
encouraging the growth of Kilbourntown, but settlers virtually by-passed
Walker's Polnt because of the uncertainty of the land title and the swampy
terrain.

After clear title to the Walker's Polint plat was finally secured in the
1850s and a significant amount of land was made sultable for building,
settiement in Walker's Point began In earnest. Mi lwaukee's population had
grown dramatically between 1840 and 1850 from 1,712 to 20,051 personsﬂ Only a
falrly small percentage of this growth was attributable to the birth rate or
yankee immlgration from the east coast, since European immigrants contributed
the overwhelming majority of the new settlers. Between 1848 and 1850 new
arrivals were pouring Into the city at a rate of 300 per day. Mi lwaukee was
hard pressed to provide housing, since avallable homesites in established east
and west side nelghborhoods were becoming scarce. A characteristic of the
various European Immigrant groups was their desire to live in close proximity
+o one another. The frish had settled on the low ground on the east side north
of the Mjlwaukee River, while the Germans clustered on the west stde. The
German's were the largest single immigrant group. Although the majority of the
Germans continued to locate on the west side, the undeveloped Walker's Point
Plat attracted some German settlement in the late 1840s, and more importantly
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in the 1850s. Scandinavians and §mmigrants from the United Kingdom also
contributed to the growth of Walker's Point's.

Another impetus for settiement in Walker's Point was ¥ts proxbmity to the
major transportatbon arntertes of the pre-Civil Wan perbod. The phoneer
Walker's Point settiement was founded ¥n a strategic location at the confluence
of the Mdlwaukee and Menomonee Rivers, and at the point where Milwaukee's
first two ratlroads would terminate. Until the city was connected by rail with
Chicago #n 1855 and the Mississlppl River 1In 1857, the waterways were
M§ (waukee's economic lifeline. The Milwaukee River estuariy linked Milwaukee
wdth the Great Lakes and the east coast via the Erie Canal. In the 1840s a
number of ¥Industries developed in Milwaukee that processed the raw materltals of
the agricultural hinterland. Industrifes such as meat packing, tanning, floun
mblling and brewing all built facititles along and near the rivers. Mbiwaukee
became a maritime +trading center shipping agricultural products east, and
importing findshed goods, and raw matertals and new settiers. The business
community that evolved to supporit this trade #ncluded commdssion firms,
wholesale houses, warehouses, and the retali shops and stores that supplied the
needs of the local populace. It was no coincidence that Milwaukee's fhrist
bus?ness districts were located at the ritver's edge.

Commerclal activity in Walker's Polnt was orkginally concentrated in the
tirst block south of the river along South First and Second Streets.
L¥thographs of the ckty pubthshed Wn 1847 and 1854 show a smal! business
district of Federal and Greek Revival style commercial blocks, as well as a few
substanthal warehouses of masonry construction, thriee and four stories In
hebght. This town center, however, paled by comparison with the much more
extenskve commenchlal aneas along both skdes of the Milwaukee River kn
Juneautown and K3lbourntown. These up-ridver settlements had the advantage over
Walker's Podnt durtng thds perndod because rhverr traffic was inhibited by the
lack of a deep water harbor entrance. This prevented the larngest of the Great
Lakes ships friom saltdng up the Mitwaukee River Into the city proper or docking
at Wailker's Point. Instead the large ships were accommodated by thriee plers
that were erected #n the early 1840s and extended #nto Lake Michigan at the
foot of East Ciybourn Street. This enhanced the development activity on the
east side, shnce the bulk of waterborn commerce was funnelled directly finfo
Juneautown and to some extent Kilbourntown, but by-passsed Walker's Point. Of
the few boats that dkd enten the ridver, most salted directly to Kiibournntown
and Juneautown where the majorlty of the clity's population was located. Thus,
in spite of Ms early promise as a shipping center, Walker's Point was largely
bgnored by waterborn commerce and At never really developed beyond #ts early
1850s infancy as a carngo port.

Thus the apparent advantage of bekng located at the river confluence,
even after the waterways were imprioved, was not the makn impetus for the growth



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
(3-82) Expires 10-31-87

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

inventory—Nomination Form

SOUTH FIRST AND SECOND
Continuation sheet STREET HISTORIC DISTRICT Item number 8 Page 6

of the historic district. In fact, the village at Walker's Point might have
lapsed Into obscurity if it had not become the city's first rall center. In
1851, the Milwaukee and Mississippi Railroad Company built the state's first
rallway between Milwaukee and Waukesha.s The rallway originally began in
Milwaukee at the foot of Plankinton Avenue, but in 1857 a spur was bullt across
the Menomonee River at South Second Street. In 1863, this ratlway was absorbed
Into Alexander Mitchell's Mllwaukee and St. Paul Railway Company, which
eventually grew Into the glant Chicago, Milwaukee, S+. Paul and Pacific
Raflroad extending to the west coast. In 1866 the latter raiflroad built a
depot at the intersection of South Second and West Seeboth streets.

Milwaukee's second rallway was the Green Bay, Milwaukee and Chicago
Rallroad Company. The company was Incorporated, in 1851 and a llne from
M1 Iwaukee had been completed to Chicago by 1855.7 fts first terminus in
M! lwaukee was located just east of the Intersection at South First and West
Washington Streets. In 1856 the tracks were extended north to Florida Street,
where a temporary depot was bullt. In 1866 this rallway became part of the
Chicago and North Western Railroad Company and extended Its tracks to Seeboth
Street so that it could share the fine new Chicago, Milwaukee and St. Paul
depot. Because both rallroads jointly used the bullding, it was subsequently
known as Union Depot. This made it possible for rall travellers from Chicago
and the east to connect directly with westward bound trains.

Union Depot was Milwaukee's first major train statlon. I+ was a long,
two-story frame structure of utilitarian design that extended along the west
side of South Second Street for a block-and-one-half from Seeboth Street.
Located in the heart of the original Walker's Point business district, it made
the fledgling community an important commercial center. Union Depot served as
Mi Iwaukee's primary rall center until 1872 when the Chicago Milwaukee & St.
Paul established its own line to Chicago and the rival Chicago & Northwestern
was forced to move out of the depot agd build 1+s own station at the end of
East Wisconsin Avenue on the lakefront.

The railroads significantly encouraged commercial actlvity In Walker's
Point and the business district around the statlon grew In response to the
increased traffic. Buildings were built not only to accommodate the production
and storage of goods to be shipped by rall, but a substantial retall and
service sector evolved to meet the day to day needs of +the Iimmediate
nefghborhood. By the end of the 1850s there was a solld commercial fabric of
mixed business uses along First and Second Streets, and on the cross sfreets as
far south as Florida Stireet. The business district housed four primary
activities: retall, service, light manufacturing and processing. The retall
sector was by far the largest and there were shops that sold clothing, shoes,
millinery, dry goods, hardware, jewelry, groceries and Iiquor. With the
railroads came traveling salesmen and other travelers In need of temporary food
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and lodging. To meet their needs, service businesses such as hotels, barber
shop, saloons and restaurants were established. Also located in the area were
a significant number of artisans and craftsmen who operated small metal
products businesses including brass and iron foundries, a beil foundry and
numerous tinmakers and sheet metal goods makers. The Iron foundries were among
the first to be established in the city. The agricultural products processors
were engaged in tanning, meat packing, brewing, liquor distilling and cigar
making. One characteristic that distinguished this business district from the
business districts 1In Juneautown and Kilbourntown was the Jlack of a
professional class. There is little evidence from business directories and the
bustness 1lstings in the city directories of the 1850s that the upper floors of
these buitdings were used as offices for professionails engaged In mediclne,
dentistry, law, architecture or englineering as they were in Juneautown. There
were also no banks, lInsurance companies, newspaper publlshers or commission
offices.

During the Clvil War years, Milwaukee experienced tremendous economic
growth and the city's busliness dlstricts were expanded and rebuilt with
substantial, masonry commercial blocks. From 1860 to 1870, the district was
rebullt with a signiflicant number of Italianate Style commerciat buildings that
ranged from two to four-stories in height. The businessmen who erected these
buildings were overwhelming of German origin, and had come to the city with the
education, skills and, sometimes, the Investment capltal necessary to establish
successful businesses. The Germans were the largest single Immigrant group on
the south side constituting 50% of the households in 1850 and 40% in 1860. The
Irish were the second largest group followed by reslidents from the United
Kingdom and Scandinavia. Although the Germans were statistically dominant, the
Fifth Ward was not thought of as an exclusively German part of the city. There
was a balance between the German merchant community and the Scandinavians, who
worked almost exclusively In ship buiiding and related maritime businesses, and
the British, who were mostly employed In the foundries, ttn shops and other
metal works.

Typlcal of the German businessmen who prospered during the Civil War were
meat packer, Robert Kretschmar at 157-59 South 1st Street (No. 31); grocer,
Francis Holzinger at 149-53 South 1st Street (No. 30); liquor rectifier Emil
Schneider at 131 South 1st Street (No. 28); and the hardware flrm of Maschauer
and Frankfurth at 213-19 South Second Street (No. 11). These businesses had
been established prior to the Civil War and during the prosperous 1860s thelr
original modest store bulldings were replaced with the present structures. Al
of these men built substantial three-story commercial buildings with facades
articulated In the Itallianate style. Also during this period, several
speculative retall blocks were erected with multiple storefronts that were
leased to individual merchants. Examples of this type of rental commerclal
block include Burnham's Building at 100 East Seeboth Street (No. 34) +that
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housed two retail grocers and a saloon, Mabbett+ and Breeds Block at 190-96
South Second Street (No. 24) that had stores rented to a drugglist, two leather
good firms, a dry goods store and a shoe store, and the commerclal bullding at
165-19 South 1st Street (No. 33) that housed a retall grocer, a harness and
trunk maker, and a retall dry goods merchant.

After 1870, the character of South Flrst and Second Streets began to
change. The center of retalling shifted south to the newly developling business
district along Natlonal Avenue. The historic district became more of an area
for 11ght manufacturing, wholesaling and warehousing. Typlcal of the large
loft bulldlings bulit to accommodate these types of businesses was the Nazro
Hardware Bullding at 170 South Second Street (No. 25) (1873), a masslve, four-
story, I|tallanate style warehouse building with wholesale showrooms on the
ground fioor. A later example Is the Larkin Bullding at 200 South Second
Street (No. 17) (1890) and the Milwaukee Lace Paper Co. Bullding at 131 West
Seeboth (No. 26) (1894). These latter two bulldings were built as factories
not warehouses. The largest bulidings were constructed in the 1890s when the
east side of South Second Street between Seeboth Street and the river
confluence was transformed with the construction three masslive four- and flve-
story warehouse bulldings: Milwaukee Cold Storage Co. at 100 South Second
Street (No. 1) (1892); Lindsay Bros. Agricultural {Implements at 126 South
Second Street (No. 2) (1892); and the F.A Walsh Co. at 160 South Second Street
(No. 3) (1899). The trend to light manufacturing and warehousing contlnued
Into the twentleth century and culminated In the construction of the Sperry
Candy Company plant In 1950 at 127-33 West Pittsburgh Avenue (No. 18). Today
the dlstrict still retains 1ts Industrial character, although In recent years a
number of taverns and nlghtclubs have moved into vacant bullding on South First
and Second Streets.

Archeological Potential

The subject area was not evaluated for archeological potential as part of
the city's survey activities., It is not known to what extent the land was dis-
turbed between 1835 and the 1870s when the earliest known photographs depict the
terrain mich as it is today. It is likely that considerable modifications to
the river banks and fill activities have occurred.

Pieservation Activity

No perceptible preservation activity has occurred within the district.

*The end date for the period of significance was taken up to 1925 to correspond
to the last date of significant historic construction/alteration in the district,
prior to the general inactivity and decline of the Depression. While little new
construction activity was undertaken after 1900, the area did remain a strong,
cohesive commercial district up to the 1920s.
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Biographical Publishing Co., 1895), 1:23. ’

2 Byron Anderson, "A History of Milwaukee's Southside, 1834-1930" (M.A.
Thesis, Unlversity of Wlsconsin-Miiwaukee, 1977), pp. 17-18, 20.

3 Harry H. Anderson and Frederick [. Olson, Milwaukee at the Gathering of the
Waters (Tulsa: Continental Heritage Press, 1984), p. 17.
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Harvard University Press, 1976), p. 14.

5 Conzen, p. 131
6 Anderson, "Mii{waukee's Southside", p. 36.

7 ibid.

8 Milwaukee Sentinel, 25 February 1888, p. 4 col. 4.




9. Major Bibliographical References

See Item 9, Continuation Page 1

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 6.7 Acres
Quadrangle name _SW/4 Milwaukee 7.5 series Quadrangle scale _1:24,000
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Boundary Description

The boundaries of the South 1st and Second Street Historic District are
described as follows: Beginning at the intersection of the east curb Iine of
South Second Street and the south bank of the Menomonee River; then southeast
to the west line of the Chlcago, Milwaukee and St. Paul Rallroad right-of-way;
then south to the north curb line of West Seeboth Street; then east to the
east curb line of South 1st Place; then north to the southwest bank of the
Mi lwaukee River; then east to the west curb line of South First Street; then
south to the north curb line of East Seeboth; then West to the west curb line
of South tst Street; then south to the north curb line of West Pittsburgh
Avenue; then west to the west right-of-way of the Chicago, Milwaukee and St.
Paul railroad tracks; then south to the north right-of-way line of the alley
between West Pittsburgh Avenue and West Oregon Street; then west to the west
curb line of South Second Street; then south to the north curb line of West
Oregon Street; then west to the east R.0.W. line of the alley befween South
Second and South 3rd streets; then north to the south curb line of West
Seeboth Street; then east to the east curbline of South Second Street; then
north to the point of beginning in the City of Milwaukee, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin. :

Boundary Justification

The district is distinguished from its environs by the change in land use
and the difference in scale, design and building type of the surrounding struc-
tures. To the east, west and south the district is bordered by large, mostly
modern, light manufacturing plants interspersed with surface parking lots and
storage yards. To the north the district is physically separated from the
downtown by the Milwaukee and Menomonee Rivers.
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133 133 W PITTSBURGH AV

Premise Address

428-0269-110 0 0 2016 6275 HEU 428-08 40
Taxkey CD S/A YR Nbhd Appr Plat |
|
Owner Information PITTSBURGH AVENUE LLGC i
|
Address 601 N COLLEGE AVE STE 1A ;
BLOOMINGTON IN 47404- ‘
Class Symbol Land Improvement Total
Current Local Mercantile Unfinished 255,200 1,897,800 2,153,000
Previous Local Mercantile 255,200 1,976,800 2,232,000
Exm Type Exm % Land Exm % Imprv Exm Land Exm Imprv Exm Total
Current 0 0 0
Previous 0 0 0
Asmt.Changed 08/26/2016 SYSTEM Rsn Chg | ChgDoc 2016 - 1265 5 BA-14
SaleDate 10/20/2015 Type SD Fee 0 Date Name Chg 01/25/2016
DivYear 1985 Div # 68 Drop Yr 0 Drop #0 Record Status A Status Date
Aldrm District 12 Land Use Code Zoned IM Historic Code Legal Chg. Date

Property Characteristics

# 1 Multi Story Warehouse - Nr.Sec =7

Bidg: 1 NbrSect7  BidgType: C402 LocType IS  Park  Buit 1890 Econ Nbhd M75

Remodel: 0  FlArea: 58,800 Stories: 50 Comm Units: 0 Res Units: 22 Traffic: L
Parcel Sq Ft: 31,900 Excess Land: 0 Acres: 0.00 Environment: 0
0 e27

# 2 Multi Story Warehouse - Nr.Sec = 3

Bldg: 2 NbrSect3  BldgType: C402 LocType IS  Park  Buit 1893 Econ Nbhd M75

Remodel: 0 FlArea: 20,936 Stories: 4.0

# 3 Multi Story Warehouse - Nr.Sec = 1

Comm Unité: 3 Res Units: 0

0.00
0 627!

Traffic: L

Bidg: 3 NbrSecti1  BidgType: C402 LocType IS Park  Buit 1890 Econ NbhdM75

Remodel: 1956 FlArea: 5,844 Stories: 20 Comm Units: 1 Res Units: 0
0.00
0 627

Type Description

 Traffic L

? WALKER'S POINT IN NE 1/4 SEC 32-7-22

3_74: BLOCK 10 LOTS 10-11 & W 45' LOT 5 & LOT 6 EXC S 32' OF W 25'

4 &N108'LOT7
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